
 
1 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

Minutes of Meeting of the Development Committee of Mid Ulster District Council 
held on Thursday 10 April 2025 in the Council Offices, Ballyronan Road, 
Magherafelt and by Virtual means 
 
 
Members Present  Councillor Black, Chair 
 

Councillors Bell, W Buchanan, F Burton, Corry, Forde, 
Gildernew*, McLernon*, McNamee, McQuade*, Milne, 
Molloy, Monteith*, Quinn*, Wilson 

 
Officers in   Mr Black, Strategic Director of Communities & Place 
Attendance     (SD: C&P) 

Mr Gordon, Assistant Director of Health, Leisure and  
    Wellbeing (AD: HL&W) ** 
    Ms Linney, Assistant Director of Development (AD: DEV) 

Mr McCreedy, Strategic Programmes Service Manager 
(SPSM) 
Ms McKeown, Tourism Service Manager (TSM) 
Ms Spence, Economic Regeneration Service Manager 
(ERSM) 
Mr Loughran, Business Support Administrator 
Mrs Forde , Committee and Member Services Manager 

 
 
*   Denotes Members present in remote attendance 
**  Denotes Officers present by remote means 
*** Denotes Others present by remote means 
          
The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black welcomed everyone to the meeting and those watching 
the meeting through the Live Broadcast. Councillor Black in introducing the meeting 
detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the business of the committee 
by referring to Annex A to this minute. 
 
 D059/25 Notice of Recording  
 
This meeting will be webcast for live and subsequent broadcast on the Council’s You 
Tube site. 
 
D060/25 Apologies 
 
Councillor Clarke. 
 
D061/25 Declaration of Interests  
  
The Chair, Councillor Black reminded Members of their responsibility with regard to 
declaration of interest. 
 



 
2 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

Councillor Wilson declared an interest in Cookstown Enterprise Centre. 
Councillor F Burton declared an interest in Bawn Development Association (family 
member). 
 
Councillor Corry asked if a declaration of interest is declared at the start of the year, 
does that cover all declarations. 
 
Chair Councillor Black stated that the declaration at the start of year would cover all 
declarations. 
 
Councillors McLernon and McNamee declared an interest in Shopmobility as they are 
board members. 
  
D062/25  Chair’s Business 
 
Councillor Wilson raised the issue of the British Open Golf Championship in July 2025 
and said he had been made aware that the RNA wished to expand the British Open 
outside of the Portrush area. The Councillor said Council had been approached in 
November 2023 regarding a proposal with Tobermore Golf academy with a draft 
agreement being sent to Council in July 2024 and he had been advised Council had 
provided no update since then. 
 
The Strategic Director of Communities & Place (SD: C&P) stated that Council was 
aware of the proposal and were going through due diligence reviews and an update 
would be provided to Members. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black stated this issue needs to be moved on at pace. 
 
 
D063/25 Deputation - Gaza Paediatric Care Initiative 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black advised that Gaza Paediatric Care Initiative were not 
available to attend tonight’s meeting, and that the presentation will be rescheduled. 
 
 
Matters for Decision 
 
D064/25 Development Report 
 
The Assistant Director of Development (AD: DEV) presented previously circulated 
report which sought approval for the following –  
 

• Shopmobility Mid Ulster Support  

• Development Department - Update 
 
Councillor Corry proposed the recommendation and stated that the Shopmobility 
scheme is close to the hearts of a lot of people and that she also supported the 
scheme. 
 



 
3 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

Councillor F Burton said that she was delighted to see the Shopmobility scheme being 
approved for another three years and seconded Councillor Corry’s proposal. 
 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council to –  

• Agree financial contribution of £5000 per annum (for a further 3-year 
period, subject to budget and annual review) to the Shopmobility 
scheme to assist with rent. 

• Note the Development Department Update 
 
D065/25 Community Grant Aid Awards  
 
The Assistant Director of Development (AD: DEV) presented previously circulated 
report which sought approval for the Community Grant Aid Programme award 
allocations 2025/2026. 
 
Councillor Corry acknowledged the work of officers in the grant process and said 
many community groups would be happy with the outcome but raised a few queries, 
(i) should Coagh United not have been considered under Pitches & Recreational 
Spaces Strategy as opposed to Capital Discretionary; (ii) O’Donavon Rossa GAC 
Magherafelt had submitted to wrong grant could this be revisited.  She concluded that 
if a grant was submitted incorrectly groups should be alerted.  
 
In response the AD: Dev said if Coagh had applied to Pitches & Recreational Spaces 
Strategy they would most likely have been successful, and it would have meant Glor 
Mhachaire Fiolta would have been ranked at three, but officers had to assess 
applications as submitted.  She said that re the case with O’Donavon Rossa GAC, it 
had been an error as they had prepared the application in line with a pitches capital 
grant on the application but had submitted it on to the pitches feasibility grant form, 
and noted both are similar headings on the system.  She said if it was a proposal by 
Members, they could consider the O’Donavon Rossa GAC application, as the pitches 
grant is a programme over a number of years with a set overall budget and as per 
previous years this is allocated upon successful applications.   It was noted the 
application would still have to be assessed under the criteria and outcome brought 
back to committee for consideration. 
 
Councillor Corry proposed that officers review O'Donavan Rossa GAC Magherafelt 
under the appropriate grant application fund and report outcome to committee. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black clarified that all subject to the foregoing all other 
applications be recommended to Council. 
 
The AD: Dev clarified that the scoring would not impact any of the other grants 
recommended. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black cautioned that the committee could not cherry pick and 
must be consistent and sought clarity that no other group had made a similar error. 
 
The AD: Dev said she would re-check but from memory there had only been the one 
group. 
 



 
4 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

Proposed by Councillor Corry 
Seconded by Councillor Milne and  

 
Resolved That officers review O'Donavan Rossa GAC Magherafelt under the 

appropriate grant application fund and report outcome to committee. 
 
 
Councillor F Burton thanked the officers for the report and said the grants awarded 
covered a wide geographical area and that the money is very welcome.  The 
Councillor also said that some groups applied for £1500 but are recommended for less 
than £1000 and queried how the scoring process arrived at these figures.  Councillor F 
Burton also stated that Clogher Valley Show only received £7600 and asked if there 
was any option for support in the Tourism budget and emphasised that it is a major 
one day show in Northern Ireland.  She said Council should also look at other events 
for example the Cookstown 100 and advised that Armagh, Banbridge and Craigavon 
Council give £10,000 each to two bigger events, for example Armagh and Lurgan 
Shows and that Council should explore offering more support.  
 
The Tourism Services Manager (TSM) advised that £1000 had been given to Clogher 
Valley Show from the tourism budget and up to eight tourism businesses exhibit but 
said she would speak to Clogher Valley Show organisers to suggest contacting NI 
Tourist Board.  
 
Councillor McNamee said that great work has been done by the staff in assessing 
grants and asked if there is any possibility that the 5% shortfall could be brought up.  
The Councillor also asked if a refresher workshop could be set up to help people with 
applications  
 
The SD: C&P stated that it is too early in the financial year to identify any potential 
budget underspends, however indicated that if additional central government funding 
became available ‘in year’ or underspends identified, uplifts to grants could be 
considered.  
 
Councillor Wilson commended officers and said the grants were a lifeline for many 
groups.  In relation to strategic grants, he said he had raised the Cookstown 100 
previously and there was to be a review of strategic grants.  He also expressed 
concern regarding proposal to revisit a grant application. 
 
Councillor Quinn asked what the reason is for 5% shortfall 
 
The AD: DEV responded to say it the 5% shortfall is to keep within annual revenue 
budget but should more funding become available Council would revisit.  
 
The Chair, Councillor Black acknowledged concerns in revisiting applications and said 
that criteria must be met and consistency applied. 
 
Councillor Wilson said criteria cannot be changed, and applications should be 
considered under the section they were submitted to.  The Councillor stated there 
could be other groups that should they have applied under a different criteria could 
have received more funding. 



 
5 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

 
Councillor Forde said that all documents need to be correct and if one is reconsidered 
you could have more problems. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black reiterated his comments that the committee should be 
cautious. 
 
The SD: C&P advised that what is before Members is the officers assessment based 
on the criteria that was published.  The SD: C&P stated there is a proposal on the floor 
in relation to looking at one application, due to what appears to be a submission error 
on behalf of the group, and it is believed this is the only scenario that exists across the 
scheme.  He indicated this is a decision for Members on whether they want to take 
that application as per the publish scheme or for it to be relooked at. 
 
Councillor Corry proposed the remainder of the report. 
 
Councillor Wilson reiterated that he was against the proposal to revisit one application. 
 
Councillor Forde concurred expressing concern. 
 
Councillor W Buchanan asked that it be noted he too was against the proposal to 
revisit one application. 
 
Councillor F Burton stated that she too was against the proposal to revisit one 
application. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Black acknowledged concerns and said they would be noted.  
 

Proposed by Councillor Corry  
Seconded by Councillor McNamee and 

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council, subject to the foregoing, to approve 

the awards of the grants under the Grant Aid Policy as per Appendix. 
 
 
D066/25 Economic Development Report - OBFD 
 
The Economic Regeneration Service Manager (ERSM), Tourism Service Manager 
(TSM) and Strategic Programmes Service Manager (SPSM) presented previously 
circulated report which provided update on -  
 

• Mid Ulster Enterprise Week 2025 

• Tourism Trade and Consumer Shows/Events 2025/2026 

• Visit Mid Ulster Website Annual Licence and Charges 

• Digital Signage Service Level Agreement (2024-2025) 

• Service Level Agreement – Irish Central Border Area Network (ICBAN) 
2025/2026 

• Service Level Agreement – MEGA 2025/2026 – Update 2024/2025 

• Proposal from Mid Ulster Lean Cluster NI (Mid Ulster Group) 



 
6 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

 
In response to Councillor W Buchanan’s query regarding the cost of signs the TSM 
advised that the signs were installed in the three main towns in 2023, and the one for 
Maghera had been postponed until the completion of the public realm scheme.  She 
said there was also one for US Grants Homestead and the costs was associated with 
service level agreements.  
 

Proposed by Councillor McNamee   
Seconded by Councillor Corry and 

 
Resolved That it be recommended to Council –  
 

Mid Ulster Enterprise Week 2025 

• To approve a budget of circ. £28,000 for the delivery of Mid Ulster 
Enterprise Week 2025 from within the existing Economic Development 
budget 2025/26. 

• To proceed to seek competitive quotes to appoint a professional 
Management / Delivery Partner to manage and co-ordinate the 
delivery of Mid Ulster Enterprise Week 2025. The costs for such to be 
apportioned from within the £28,000 budget. 

 
Tourism Trade and Consumer Shows/Events 2025/2026 

• To approve officer attendance at the various Tourism Trade and 
Consumer Shows/Events in 2025/2026 as detailed in the report, at a 
cost of circa. £12,000 from Council’s Tourism budget. 

 
Visit Mid Ulster Website Annual Licence and Charges  

• To approve Visit Mid Ulster Website Annual Licence and charges for 
financial year commencing March 2025 to March 2028, at a cost of 
£14,163.67 plus Vat to provide a destination website. 
 

Digital Signage Service Level Agreement (2025 - 2026)  

• To approve Digital Signage Service Level Agreement between Council 
and Etolan Ltd, trading as Legato Solutions, for financial year 
commencing 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2026, at a cost of £3,125 +Vat 
for provision of ongoing digital signage support at six sites across Mid 
Ulster, located in Dungannon, Cookstown, Magherafelt, Maghera, 
Coalisland and U.S. Grant Homestead. 

 
Service Level Agreement: Irish Central Border Area Network 
(ICBAN) (2025/2026) 

• To note ICBAN’s 2024/2025 Progress Report outlining actions 
completed against their 2024/2025 Service Level Agreement Projects.  

• To approve Council’s Service Level Agreement with ICBAN for the 
financial year April 2025 – March 2026. 

• To approve the release of £15,000 from Council’s Economic 
Development Budget (2025/2026), subject to Council being provided 
with the requisite documentation as detailed in the Service Level 
Agreement. 



 
7 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

 
Service Level Agreement – MEGA 2025/2026 – Update 2024/2025 

• To note MEGA’s Progress Report (2024/2025), outlining actions 
completed against their Service Level Agreement Targets for 
2024/2025. 

• To approve Council’s Service Level Agreement with MEGA for the 
financial year April 2025 – March 2026. 

• To approve the release of £15,000 from Council’s Economic 
Development Budget (2025/2026), subject to Council being provided 
with all the requisite documentation as detailed in the Service Level 
Agreement (2025-2026). 

 
Proposal from Lean Cluster NI (Mid Ulster Group)  

• To approve a contribution of up to £2,150 towards the Launch and 
Marketing costs of the initiative, subject to compliance with Council 
conditions (i.e. Chair speaking at the event and Council’s contribution 
being acknowledged in promotional material). 

• To approve that the Cluster is notified immediately of the Committee’s 
decision and prior to the Council meeting to enable event planning, 
due to the short timeframe between the Council meeting (24 April 
2025) and the Launch (1 May 2025).  

 
 
Matters for Information  
 
D067/25 Minutes of Development Committee held on 13 March 2025 
 
Members noted Minutes of Development Committee held on 13 March 2025. 
 
Councillor F Burton drew attention to C041/25 Chair’s Business referencing her 
comments about damaged signage and expressed appreciation that the majority had 
been fixed.  She concluded that Department for Infrastructure kept a close eye on 
maintenance of stop signs on rural roads. 
 
 
D068/25 Environmental Health Service Update  
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the work of 
Council’s Environmental Health Service. 
 
Councillor Molloy said he had received complaints from constituents in the Moy in 
relation to dog fouling which was a problem across the district.  He said that he had 
heard a report that Belfast City Council was exploring the possibility of introducing 
DNA testing and suggested that it be raised through SOLACE as an 11 council project 
which may be more cost efficient.  
 
Councillor Monteith concurred and said he had raised this previously. 
 



 
8 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

The Chair, Councillor Black advised Councillor Monteith that it was difficult to hear him 
in the chamber.  
 
 
D069/25 Economic Development Report - OBFI 
 
Members noted previously circulated report which provided update on the following –  
 

• Maghera Town Centre Forum Minutes – Meeting Minutes 04.09.24 

• Magherafelt Town Centre Forum Minutes – Meeting Minutes 23.09.24 

• Events to Celebrate International Women’s Day - March 2025 

• Digital Transformation Flexible Fund (DTFF) – Update on Call 3 

• Evaluation of Mid Ulster Labour Market Partnership (LMP) Women Returners 
Programme 2023-24 

 
The live broadcast ended at 7.40 pm. 
 
 
Local Government (NI) Act 2014 – Confidential Business 
 
 Proposed by Councillor F Burton 
 Seconded by Councillor Molloy and  
 
Resolved In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 Schedule 6 of the Local 

Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public in accordance with 
Section 42, Part 1 Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (NI) 2014 
that Members of the public be asked to withdraw from the meeting whilst 
members consider items D070/25 to D073/25. 

 
 Matters for Decision 

D070/25 SHHP Bellaghy Bawn Writers Residency Project 
D071/25 Small Settlement Project at Castledawson and programmed 

enhancement works at Monrush Recreational Area, 
Cookstown 

D072/25 Economic Development Report - CBFD 
 

  Matters for Information  
D073/25 Confidential Minutes of Development Committee held on 

13 March 2025 
 

D074/25 Duration of Meeting 
 
The meeting was called for 7pm and ended at 7.55 pm. 
 

Chair  ________________________ 
 
 

Date _________________________  



 
9 – Development Committee (10.04.25) 

 
Annex A – Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson 
 
 
Good evening and welcome to the Council’s [Policy & Resources/Environment/ 

Development] Committee in the Chamber, [Cookstown/Magherafelt] and virtually. 

I specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast. The Live 

Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we 

move into Confidential Business. I let you know before this happens.  

Just some housekeeping before we commence.  Can I remind you:- 

o If you have joined the meeting remotely, please keep your audio on mute unless 

invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking 

 

o Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet connection 

issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off 

 

o If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep 

raised until observed by an Officer or myself  

 

o Should we need to take a vote this evening I will ask each member to confirm 

whether they are for or against the proposal or abstaining  

 

o When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting 

 

o For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please 

turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item 

 

o If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being 

referred to 

 

o Lastly, I remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or 

using any means to enable anyone not present to see or hear proceedings, or 

making a simultaneous oral report of the proceedings are not permitted 

 

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda - apologies and then 

roll call of all other Members in attendance. 

 
 

 

 

 

 


